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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The President's House was built around 1903 by David Ross Boyd. It
was then basically a two=-story, relatively plain box (34 x 55 feet),
which it remained so long as Dr. Boyd owned it. After 1914 it acquired
its two wings, a one-story wing (16 x 24 feet) on the east and a two-
story (26 x 26 feet) addition to the west.

The residence stood pretty much as it does today by 1920. This in-
cludes the gracious classic entrence on the south with its balcony and
massive ionic colums. It was edded by President Stratton D. Brooks
(1912-1923), at his personal expense, and there is no existing record to
show that he was ever reimbursed. (A story, quite possibly true, is
that Dr. Brooks, who moved out of the state after giving up the presidency,
was allowed to send his children back to the university tuition free. At
last, he is supposed to have confided to a friend, I've gotten my money
back for those colums.)

Since 1920 the house remained virtually unchanged. University crews
keep the building and grounds in excellent condition. Within the past
few years, however, it has undergone some interior changes in connection
with its current use.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Solid, genteel, and comfortably conventional, the University of
Oklahoma's "White House™ might well serve as & symbol of Sooner State
intellectual life. For more than half a century, from its corner site
overlooking the campus, it housed the president of the state's primary
institution of higher learning. Today, excellently maintained, it
continues to serve the university as a setting for conferences, seminars,
and a variety of other official and semi-official meetings.

The house was built around 1903 as a private residence by Dr. David
Ross Boyd, president of the university when it opened its doors in 1892
with himself and three others as the entire faculty. In 1914 the prop-
erty was purchased by the State of Oklahoma as official residence for
the president. The sale called for the exchange of a piece of state-
owned school land for the home property, together with a €0-acre tract
adjacent to the campus. BEvery subsequent president of the university
lived in the home until 1968, when another property was purchased and
the "White House"™ was put to new uses.

From the beginning the gracious home == which by 1920 had acquired
its present size and classic lines «- has hosted a cross-sestion of
state, national, and world notables as business, politics, culture ==
and pleasure =- brought them to Okleahomae. And as they have brought
onto the campus, from the outside, the varied aspects of their own
backgrounds and careers, so have they teken away with them a keener
awareness of life on the Oklahoma campus and perhaps a better under=-
standing of thet segment of Oklahoma's heritage being studied, pre-
served, interpreted, disseminated -- and, of course, added to -- by
the diverse activities of a major university.

Overnight guests through the years have included all the governors
of Oklahoma and the presidents of many other universities, from Dr.
David Starr Jordan, Stanford's first, to the heads of the other schools
of Oklahoma's Big Eight conference, inoluding Dr. Milton Eisenhower.
Other notables entertained at the "White House" include poets Edgar Lee
Masters, Carl Sandburg, and Sir Rabindrenath Tagore, scientists Dr.
Niels Bohr and Sir Alexander Fleming, evangelist Billy Grahem and screen
star Van Heflin, philanthropist E. DeGolyer and band leader John Philip
Sousa, and such political figures as Ex-Presidents William Howard Taft




Data compiled by the Cleveland County Historical Society and kept on
file in their office in Norman, Oklahoma.
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No. 8. Significance

Pregident 's House, University of Oklehoma
and Harry Truman, Eleenor Roosevelt, and Lord and Lady Halifax.

Yot another function of the president 's house over the years has been
to serve as congenial meeting place for groups, not of those already in
positions of influence and important -- like legislators, civic and
business leaders -~ but of students perhaps destined to assume such posi-
tions. Both Dr. Williem B. Bizzell, president from 1924 to 1942, and
Dr. George Cross, president from 1944 to 1968, had a President's Class
or President's Leadership Class of selected honor students. These met
regularly, especially during President Bizzell's era, in the home of the
president, where the young, potential leaders were not only exposed to a
smattering of the kmowledge and culture of the past, but permitted to
absorb gomething of the personality and character of the president =~- and
his wife -- in the intimacy of their home. As an "alummus" of one such
class, the preparer of this nomination cen attest to the intellectual
stimulation of this contact and the tremendous opportunity it provided for
growth and maturity. A dozen to two dozen individual youths were involved
each year, for many years. To the extent it served as setting for these
contacts, and enriched them, the "White House" of the university, in this
one function alone, has made a great contribution to the growth and devel-
opment of Oklahoma.




